
From: Navraj
To: Neethu Syam
Cc: Anne Berry; Krista Grewal; Jay Lin
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal Street (19-011)
Date: Thursday, April 25, 2024 9:01:30 AM
Attachments: image002.jpg
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15514 - Shoring Drawings - Signed&Sealed - 2024-04-25.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi Neethu,
 
As promised, please find attached the updated shoring plans from Geopacific which
showcases all trees present on the site.
 
In addition, I am looping in Jay Lin from our team who will oversee communication while Krista
is away on vacation. Krista will be periodically checking emails, but Jay will be the main point
of contact for anything urgent and pressing in her absence.
 
We will forward over the draft Section 219 covenants once our lawyers have drawn them up so
we can have the legal instruments all approved and wrapped up in due course.
 
If there is anything else you need from us at this time, please do not hesitate to reach out. In
the interim, we look forward to receiving the interdepartmental comments deriving from the
supplementary reports and gaining further insight on all other 4th reading requirements so we
can push forth towards a council date.
 
Best,

Nav
Development Coordinator
Weststone Group
#315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey, BC  V3T 0M3
E: nav@wsgroup.ca
P: 604-498-1958 x109

 
From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 11:39 AM
To: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>; Navraj <nav@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
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Caution:This has been sent from outside of WestStone. Make sure you recognize the
sender before opening attachments or clicking links.

 

 
Hi Krista,
 
Thanks for your email. I had a good long weekend. I hope you did too!
 
As previously mentioned, I will only be circulating the report package to the internal team upon
receipt of the updated shoring information in the interest of staff having the complete
information while conducting their review. The Shoring drawing is pivotal at this juncture as we
will review this with the remaining documents and identify any potential impact the updated
design, particularly the additional fourth level in the parkade will have on tree preservation.
 
Concerning lot consolidation, you will first need to demolish any existing buildings and/or
structures on the properties before you can consolidate, to avoid the creation of any non-
conformities. Additionally, since a portion of the properties will be provided as road
dedication, the survey plan for lot consolidation will have to reflect the same, and the
Application of Deposit Plan (ADP) will require the Approving Officer’s signature. I recommend
you consult your legal team on this. At this time, you may proceed to submit a Demo Permit
Application. Please reach out to building@whiterockcity.ca for demo permit application
submission requirements.
 
About the Section 219 covenants:

1. Housing agreement: I’ve followed up with our legal team on their comments on your
version of the draft housing agreement and am waiting to hear back.

2. Tree Protection Covenant:  I’ve attached a master template for a tree protection
covenant for your reference. Please note that this template is quite high level and
language around tree protection and replacement measures specific to your
development will need to be incorporated. Please prepare the same and send it my way
for our legal team’s review.

3. Regarding the other agreements required to be registered on title, I don’t have any
templates to share at this time, so your legal team is welcome to draft them up for our
review.

 
I’m unavailable for a chat today, but feel free to give me a call at 604-541-2159 anytime
tomorrow between 3:00 – 4:30 PM if you’d like to this discuss further.
 
Thanks,
 
Neethu Syam (she/her)
Planning Division Lead

mailto:building@whiterockcity.ca


Planning and Development Services, City of White Rock
15322 Buena Vista Avenue, White Rock, BC V4B 1Y6
Tel: 604.541.2159 | www.whiterockcity.ca

Email signature logo

The information transmitted, including attachments, is intended only for the individual(s) or entity(ies) to which it is addressed and may contain information that is
confidential and/or privileged or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. Any copying, review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any
action in reliance upon this information by individual(s) or entities other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. If you have received this information in error,
please notify the City of White Rock and destroy any copies of this information. Thank you.

 
From: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 9:45 AM
To: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>; Navraj <nav@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi Neethu,
 
Hope you had a great long weekend!
 
Are you available for a quick chat? We have submitted all of the below (aside from the updated
shoring) and I am hoping to start on the other 4th reading conditions including the S219’s. I
would like to get the drafts from your lawyers if they have any.
 
It has been quite some time since we got the 4th reading checklist and we were asked to hold
off on working through them. I just want to ensure we are still on track to achieve 4th in a
reasonable time frame.
 
I am free any time today for a quick 5 minute chat. My cell is 604-537-3491.
 
Best,
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 

WestStone Group
 

http://www.whiterockcity.ca/
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Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 
From: Krista Baronian 
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 6:25 PM
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
 
There was a delay with our consultants. We are hoping to have the trees reflected on the
shoring drawings shortly. Is there any way for us to receive any comments back on the other
items (if there are any?)
 
Furthermore, I just wanted to check in to see if there was anything else required as part of the
4th reading conditions for consolidating the lots. All our tenants are now moved out of the
homes and the houses have been boarded up and ready for demolition. Let me know if there
are any additional forms I need to have filled out for this consolidation.
 
We are also close to the finish line to submit our first round servicing drawings with our civil
consultant and Hiep Lo.
 
Finally, we have our lawyers on stand by to complete all legal forms with the City’s lawyer
(covenants and agreements) the moment we get the go-ahead.
 
Looking forward to getting this project close to final adoption as we work through the
conditions.
 
Best,
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 

WestStone Group
 

mailto:NSyam@whiterockcity.ca
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
Sent: Friday, February 16, 2024 11:41 AM
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
 
Thanks for letting me know. I’ll wait for the updated Excavation and Shoring drawings before I
circulate the package to the team. This will help us provide you with a comprehensive
response following our review.
 
Regards,
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 1:00 PM
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
 
Just to let you know, Parb is no longer at Weststone so I will be the main point of contact here
on out. I have added Nav from our office who is our Development Coordinator to oversee any
emails and requests.
 
I just re-uploaded the shoring drawings and the latest geo in the same Vidal drive -  4th
Reading Submission & Requirements 
 
It does look like they are missing the trees but I have asked Geo to include them. I will email you
once received.
 
Best,

Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 

WestStone Group
 

 
Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 
From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 11:48 AM
To: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>; Parb Rehal <parb@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 

https://wsgroup.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/1037-VidalWhiteRock/EgzikIDnA-JJo8eGbOLjlw0BVVQ_cgBRnRl4oIOuW012Aw?e=2q03V3
https://wsgroup.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/1037-VidalWhiteRock/EgzikIDnA-JJo8eGbOLjlw0BVVQ_cgBRnRl4oIOuW012Aw?e=2q03V3
mailto:NSyam@whiterockcity.ca
mailto:krista@wsgroup.ca
mailto:ABerry@whiterockcity.ca
mailto:parb@wsgroup.ca


 
Hi Krista,
 
I’m preparing the materials to be circulated for review, and I noticed that the ‘Excavation and
Shoring Details” drawing set was not part of the submission package. Could you please confirm if this
was included? As previously mentioned, this drawing(s) must identify all trees proposed for
retention and replacement, their root details etc.
 
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

 
From: Neethu Syam 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 10:17 AM
To: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>; Sophia Bihari <sbihari@whiterockcity.ca>; Parb Rehal
<parb@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 
Hi Krista,
 
Happy New Year! I am just back from vacation and am working through the emails in my inbox. I

wanted to send you a quick note to confirm that I received your email dated 11th December 2023,
and will review and circulate the documents for internal review. Should I have any follow-up
questions, I’ll be in touch.
 
If you have any questions in the meantime, please feel free to reach out.
 
Kind regards,
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
mailto:sbihari@whiterockcity.ca
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
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 10:09 AM
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
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi All,
 
Happy New Year!
 
Just wanted to check in on the below file as well for Vidal. Please let me know if you have any
questions in regards to the updated supplemental reports.
 

Looking forward to receiving the ‘green light’ to proceed with 4th reading requirements once the
internal review has completed.
 
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
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 10:11 AM
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
 
As discussed, please find attached all the updated reports that were required by the City prior to

proceeding to our 4th reading conditions.
 
You can find them via the link below:
 

 4th Reading Submission & Requirements
 
Please let me know if you have any questions and we look forward to receiving the ‘go-ahead’ to

proceed with the remaining 4th reading requirements.
 
Best,
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 
WestStone Group
 

 
Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 

From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 5, 2023 1:13 PM
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


A Code Compliance Memorandum which includes the detailed alternative solutions (as attached in
your previous email) is an acceptable format at this stage. Please proceed to revise the memo to
reflect the latest version of the proposal that received third reading in July 2023.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 12:36 PM
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
 
We had a quick consultant link in and I just wanted to get clarification on what is required. On all of
our projects and for the consultants, the full code compliance report is typically at the BP stage of
submission. It is a  hefty cost to complete and takes time hence why it is always contracted during
the building permit phase.
 
During our current stage prior to final adoption, we typically submit a code compliance
memorandum which describes the alternative solution approach in great detail. I have re-attached
the 2023 memo above. If this will suffice for comments, I will just ensure that it is updated based on
the latest architectural drawings and flip it back to you.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 10:28 AM
To: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 
Hi Neethu,
 
Understandable. We will submit the updated report and await comments with the rest of the
package.
 
Best,
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 
WestStone Group
 

 
Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 

From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 8:14 AM
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
 
Thank you for your email. Unfortunately, as we are short-staffed, I cannot set up a meeting for this
matter at this time. I recommend you prepare the code compliance report and alternate solutions
based on the final version of the 6-storey proposal that received third reading and submit the same
for our review. I may be able to arrange a meeting to go over our comments following our review of
the report.  
 
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
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2023 3:28 PM
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
 
Are you able to assist with the setting up a meeting with the building department to discuss the code

report and the alternative solutions? Before we update the report again for a 4th time, the
consultants think it would be beneficial to have an active discussion so we can understand what the
building department will allow.
 
I wasn’t sure if Trevor Welsch is still running that side of things. We can meet any time next week if
it’s possible to set up something up. On the call will be Weststone, Keystone Architecture and Jensen
Hughes (code consultant.)
 
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
Sent: Friday, September 15, 2023 11:59 AM
To: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca>
Cc: Parb Rehal <parb@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 
Hi Krista,
 
Thank you for your email and hope you had a good summer! I’ve now had the chance to discuss with
management about your demolition waiver request. Additionally, there were some other priority
items flagged by other department staff which need to be clarified at this time. I’ve detailed them
below:
 

As the demolition of all existing buildings & structures on the subject site is a condition of the
third reading that was approved by Council, staff cannot support your request and therefore,
this condition cannot be waived. If this is something that you still want to be considered,
staff will need to take a separate report to Council saying this condition cannot be fulfilled.
While staff recognizes your reasons for the waiver request, it is recommended that you
comply with this requirement.

 
As there were many changes made to the project, including the last-minute addition (fourth-
storey parkade) at the Council meeting, we now require certain information from your end so
we can begin our analysis and provide you with clear next steps on this version of the
proposal (6 storeys, 139 unit, 4 level parkade, multi-unit residential development). The
following are the new and/or updated documents required at this time:

a. Updated Geotechnical Report
b. Updated Arborist Report
c. Drawings showing Excavation and shoring details. Please note these drawings must

identify all trees proposed for retention and replacement, and their root details etc.

mailto:NSyam@whiterockcity.ca
mailto:krista@wsgroup.ca
mailto:parb@wsgroup.ca


d. Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (to show how potential impacts to sensitive areas
and nearby watercourses will be mitigated)

e. Updated Preliminary Code Compliance report and any alternative solutions
 
Please hold off on working on any of the conditions in the third reading letter at this time. Once staff
have had a chance to view the above documents on receipt, I’ll look to set up a meeting to
communicate next steps.
 
Feel free to reach out if you have any questions.
 
Regards,
 
Neethu Syam (she/her)
Planner, City of White Rock
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
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 12:02 PM
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
 
Hope you had a great weekend.
 
I just wanted to follow up on the below. In addition, our lawyers have requested the contact details
for the City’s legal department. Typically with Section 219’s – the City has a draft and our lawyers
integrate the verbiage proposed. It would be good if our lawyer can talk to the City’s legal team to
get access to the templates.
 
Furthermore, we asked Hiep Lo at the Engineering department for comments and he sent back the
old ones from 2020. Before I send this over to our civil engineer, are there going to be updated
comments based on the latest drawings or are we to proceed with the previous comments?

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
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 9:35 AM
To: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca>
Cc: Parb Rehal <parb@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: RE: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal
Street (19-011)
 
Hi Neethu,
 
Thanks for the call just now. As discussed, we will have our lawyers draft the Section 219 registrable
documents for the City to review.
 
In addition, we are formally putting in a request to have item # 5 (demolition permit conditions)

waived as part of 4th and final adoption.
 
As you may know, we currently have tenants that reside in two of the properties and we are not
wanting to evict them until we have received our full DP. Furthermore, we have found that once a
property is completely vacant – vagrants tend to gravitate towards the properties and civilians use it
as a dumping ground. This has already happened in the past with the empty homes, which we had to
board up and block as Bylaw officers were constantly receiving complaints.
 
Our request would be to have the demolition permit issued at the same time as our BP to avoid the
matters above and ensure we have received full approval of our new development.
 
Please let me know if we can make this work with the tree covenants and TMP plans that are
required for submission. I am happy to have our current arborist submit requirements for tree
protection for the future demolition if you need anything in writing to make this decision.
 

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
Sent: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 8:59 AM
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
 
Thanks for letting me know. I’ll make myself available for our phone call at 9:00 AM tomorrow.
 
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
Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 5:11 PM
To: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>; Parb Rehal <parb@wsgroup.ca>
Subject: Re: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal

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
 
Wednesday at 9 am works for me! 
 
Best, 
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 
WestStone Group
 
 
Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 

From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca>
Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 4:00:48 PM
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
 
Let’s setup a call for sometime next week. My earliest availability is Wednesday at 9:00 AM. If that
time works for you, let me know and I can arrange to be available for our call at that time.
 
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
Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 9:30 AM
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
 
Thanks for sending the requirements of final adoption over. Our team is eager to get started and get
organized.
 

Are you able to hop on a quick call to discuss a few of the items noted as a requirement to 4th and
final adoption? I am available any time today and can be reached at 604-537-3491.
 
Best,
 
Krista Baronian
Development Manager
 
WestStone Group
 

 
Office: 604.498.1958 ext 108
Fax: 604.498.1959
 
315 – 13338 Central Ave
Surrey BC V3T 0M3
 

From: Neethu Syam <NSyam@whiterockcity.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, August 3, 2023 2:49 PM
To: Krista Baronian <krista@wsgroup.ca>; Parb Rehal <parb@wsgroup.ca>
Cc: Anne Berry <ABerry@whiterockcity.ca>
Subject: Next Steps: Post-third reading for 14937 Thrift Avenue and 1441,1443-45, 1465 Vidal Street
(19-011)
 
Hi Krista and Parb,

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


 

On July 24th 2023, Council gave third bylaw reading for your application at 14937 Thrift Avenue and
1441, 1443-45, 1465 Vidal Street– congratulations!
 
Please find attached a comprehensive third reading development conditions and additional
requirements letter summarizing the conditions that have to be completed before bringing the file
back to Council for final adoption.
 
Additionally, please note that as the site falls within the Ravine and Significant Tree Environmental
Development Permit Area, it is subject to a Minor Development Permit application as well. I have
explained this in further detail within the attached letter and listed the requirements we need at this
time.
 
Please let me know if you have further questions following the review of this letter.
 
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
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FORT LANGLEY STUDIO MOUNT PLEASANT STUDIO 

102 – 9181 Church Street 
Fort Langley, BC 

V1M 2R8 

102 – 355 Kingsway 
Vancouver, BC 
V5T 3J7 

www.vdz.ca 

604.882.0024 

 
Memo 

Date: June 28, 2024 
 

VDZ Project File No.: DP 2018-59 
Project Name: Vidal Street Development 
Site Address: 14937 Thrift Ave & 1441/1443-45/1465 Vidal 
Consulting Arborist: D. Glyn Romaine - VDZ + A Consulting Inc.                       

Attention: Stephen Heller      VDZ + Associates 
Krista Baronian     WestStone Group 
Jay Lin                     WestStone Group 
City Staff                City of White Rock 
 

  4 

Subject: Arborist Report Concerns received via email from Neethu Syam – May 31, 2024 
 

 

This memo provides a response to the following comments from the City of White Rock: 
 

 
I. On-Site Trees 

1. An updated Arborist report that reflects the impact of shoring on privately owned 
neighbouring trees - Arborist report prepared by Van der Zalm + Associates (dated 
Revision 4, Sept 26, 2023) is missing comments regarding the impact of underpinning 
will have on the trees. 

2. In the Arborist report, it states tree OS4 will have 24% of CRZ impacted, OS5 will have 
27% of CRZ impacted, OS7 will have 6% of CRZ impacted and OS8 will have 25% of CRZ 
impacted. However, on the tree protection and removal plan drawings, it appears that 
all critical root zones are shown within the Tree Protection Barriers and that they are not 
to be disturbed. Please clarify if the percentage of impact (noted above) is to the root 
system within the crown radius/dripline OR if the impact is to the root system within the 
CRZ. 

3. Please clarify the legend on the Tree Protection and Removal Plan drawings as there 
appears to be some confusion in how the same is used in the drawing. In particular, the 
CRZ and CR legend items. 

4. Will there be work within the Tree Protection Barriers – please clarify. 

5. Update the shoring drawings to show where and how the underpinning will impact the 
trees. 

 

VDZ+A Project Arborist Response: 
 

1. The Project Arborist has reviewed the shoring drawings and geotechnical report 
prepared by GeoPacific Consultants. The geotechnical report indicates a dense to 
very dense till layer beginning at depths of between 0.9 to 1.4 m.  This layer is 



 

               

 
FORT LANGLEY STUDIO MOUNT PLEASANT STUDIO 

102 – 9181 Church Street 
Fort Langley, BC 

V1M 2R8 

102 – 355 Kingsway 
Vancouver, BC 
V5T 3J7 

www.vdz.ca 

604.882.0024 

likely to act as a root restricting layer and roots critical to tree health and 
stability are not expected to be present at these depths.  Shoring anchors will be 
installed starting at 1.5 m depth and will have negligible impact on the offsite 
retained trees.  
The project arborist must be present for any work activity within 1.5 m of the 
Tree Protection Zone and will be present during excavation to mitigate any 
impacts to retained trees. The report dated June 27, 2024 as been updated to 
include comments on this.  

2. These calculations and statement were pulled from the BC Plant Health Care 
root radar results, and are based on a previous site plan where the parkade 
outline was significantly closer to the property line. These notes have been 
adjusted to only include relevant findings of the radar scan. Critical root zones 
will remain intake, with potentially minor disturbance (<0-3%) of OS4 and OS8. 

3. The CRZ and CR legend is aligned. However, a larger icon has been included for 
additional clarity. 

4. There will be no work within the Tree Protection Barriers. If any disturbance 
activities are within 1.5 m of the TPZ, then Arborist presence is required for 
monitoring. 

5. The Project Arborist has worked with geotechnical consultant to revise their 
shoring drawings. Please refer to the updated shoring drawings.  

 

 

 

                                                              

If you have any further questions or concerns regarding this report, please contact VDZ+A 
Consulting Inc. at 604-882-0024. 
 

 
 

Sincerely,  

 

 
D. Glyn Romaine TFT 

ISA Certified Arborist PN-7929A 

              ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualification 
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Notes:- Plan was prepared in accordance with MoTI TMM 2020.- Client has been notified of the WorkSafeBC OHS Regulations Part 18 amendment & it is their responsibility to ensure site compliance.- Plan must be reviewed if there are any changes to the findings of risk assessment (provided), or after one year.- Implementation of set up to follow the process outlined in the SJP-019 Device Installation Safe Job Procedure.- Advanced Warning Sign distances may be shortened to suit urban block length.- 3.5m lane width to be maintained.- TCPs to identify & illustrate escape route once on site.- Should the escape route illustrated become no longer viable, the traffic control onsite to note change in position on FLRA.- TCPs to intermittently hold traffic (ITC) to assist construction vehicle ingress/egress to site.- Driveway access to be maintained.- After working hours, road configuration to be re-instated.
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MEMORANDUM

O: +1 604-732-3751

Jensen Hughes Consulting Canada Ltd.
1195 West Broadway | Suite 228

Vancouver, BC V6H 3X5 CANADA

jensenhughes.com

Introduction

The project involves construction of a new 139-unit market residential building in White Rock BC. The complex consists of two wood-
framed buildings separated by a firewall, overtop of a tiered parkade below grade.

Building Information & Construction Requirements

North Building

Building Height: 6 Storeys

Building Area: Approx. 900 m2

Major Occupancy: Group C

Construction Type: Combustible

Project Vidal St. Development, White Rock BC

Subject Approach to Code Compliance 

File # 4V2003700

Date June 26, 2024

From Bruce Campbell

Direct 604-260-6800

E-mail bruce.campbell@jensenhughes.com

To CC Company Attention Via
☒ ☐ Keystone Architecture Lukas Wykpis Email
☒ ☐ Weststone Group Jay Lin Email
☐ ☐
☐ ☐
☐ ☐
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South Building

Building Height: 6 Storeys

Building Area: Approx. 600 m2

Major Occupancy: Group C

Construction Type: Combustible

Building Height 

The building site is slopes down approximately 7 m from north to south.  At the north end, the Level 1 floor is slightly below grade.  At 
the south end, a level landscape area extends out 7 m from the building face then slopes down to a small park/playground area at 
Thrift Avenue.  The landscape area is built up above the natural grade line to diminish the visual impact of the south building face.  The 
NBCC User’s Guide provides guidance on the evaluation of grade and finished ground levels around buildings and required a reasonably 
level area to allow for the use of ladders and the deployment of fire fighters.  The landscape area at the south end of the building 
provides sufficient area to allow for firefighting operations and is considered to meet the intent of the Code requirements for 
determination of average grade.

Grade, for purposes of calculating building height, is taken at the south face of the building.  Localized depressions for vehicle access 
to the parkade, the loading bay and the pedestrian walk on the west side of the building are excluded from the calculation.  The 
calculated average grade is 97.02 m which is the finished level of the landscape area.

The Level 1 floor elevation is 99.00 m, which is 1.98 m above grade.  In conformance with the Code definitions for grade and first 
storey, Level 1 is the first storey of the building and the building is classified as being 6 storeys in height.
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Construction Requirements

The residential buildings are regulated by 2024 BCBC Article 3.2.2.51. Group C, up to 6 Storeys, Sprinklered.
• The buildings are permitted to be of combustible construction
• Floor assemblies will be constructed as fire separations providing at least a 1 hour fire rating.
• The height from the floor of the first storey to the floor of 6th floor is not more than 18 m.
• The height from the floor of the first storey to the highest point of the roof is not more than 25 m.

Parkade as a Separate Building

Parking Levels P1 through P4 are constructed in conformance with BCBC Article 3.2.1.2. Storage Garage as a Separate Building.  The 
parking levels are of concrete construction providing at least a 2 hour fire rating.  Service penetrations through the concrete floor slab 
immediately above the parking levels will be protected by 2 hour FT rated firestop systems.

In the South Building, the P1 floor level south of the firewall contains residents’ amenity space.  This area is classified as a basement 
of the South Building and is separated from the parking levels in conformance with Article 3.2.1.2.  BCAB Decision #1747 reviewed this 
arrangement and deemed it to be code compliant.

Firewall Construction

The residential buildings are subdivided by a 2 hour firewall.  The firewall extends continuously from the top of the 3.2.1.2. parking 
garage slab up through all storeys to form a minimum 150 mm parapet above the roof.  The firewall will be of masonry or concrete 
construction providing at least a 2 hour fire rating.  Service penetrations through the firewall will be protected by 2 hour FT rated 
firestop systems.

High Building Requirements

The Level 6 floor level is 17.52 m above grade, and BCBC Section 3.6. High Buildings does not apply to this project.

Fire Department Access

Ther main lobby entrance facing Vidal Street is the primary fire department response point.  Vidal Street provides vehicle access to 
within 15 m of the main entrance.  A new fire hydrant is proposed on Vidal Street, just south of the main entrance.

The main lobby entrance is located in the South Building.  An additional entrance directly into the North Building is provided at Exit 
Stair #2.  Access to all floor levels is provided by internal stairs accessible from each building entrance.

















City of White Rock
ENGINEERING SERVICES

DRAWING INDEX

VIDAL STREET-
MULTI UNIT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

1441, 1443-45, 1465 VIDAL ST AND 14937 THRIFT AVE
WHITE ROCK. BC

WS VIDAL PROPERTIES LP

DRAWING TITLE DRAWING NUMBER
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1. Application

Hamilton Duncan Law Corporation
1450-13401 108th Avenue
Surrey BC V3T 5T3
6045814677

File No. 20014007
Housing Agreement and Covenant

2. Description of Land

PID/Plan Number Legal Description

007-223-480 LOT 41 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 35379
001-267-744 STRATA LOT 1 OF SECTION 9 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT STRATA PLAN NW2236
029-484-413 LOT 1 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN EPP46879
001-267-761 STRATA LOT 2 OF SECTION 9 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT STRATA PLAN NW2236
007-208-677 LOT 8 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 13684

3. Nature of Interest
Type Number Additional Information

COVENANT
PRIORITY AGREEMENT Granting Priority over Mortgage No. CB904727

and Assignment of Rents No. CB904728

4. Terms
Part 2 of this instrument consists of:
(b) Express Charge Terms Annexed as Part 2

5. Transferor(s)

WS VIDAL PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LTD., NO.BC1163846

BANCORP BALANCED MORTGAGE FUND II LTD., NO.BC0856913

BANCORP GROWTH MORTGAGE FUND II LTD., NO.BC0856914

BANCORP FINANCIAL SERVICES INC., NO.BC0712503

VERSABANK

6. Transferee(s)

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF WHITE ROCK
15322 BUENA VISTA AVENUE
WHITE ROCK BC V4B 1Y6

 

7. Additional or Modified Terms
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8. Execution(s)
This instrument creates, assigns, modifies, enlarges or governs the priority of the interest(s) described in Item 3 and the Transferor(s) and every other signatory
agree to be bound by this instrument, and acknowledge(s) receipt of a true copy of the filed standard charge terms, if any.

Witnessing Officer Signature Execution Date Transferor / Transferee / Party Signature(s)

__________________________________

 

YYYY-MM-DD
WS VIDAL PROPERTIES HOLDINGS
LTD.
By their Authorized Signatory

__________________________________

Officer Certification
Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.124, to take
affidavits for use in British Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this instrument.

Witnessing Officer Signature Execution Date Transferor / Transferee / Party Signature(s)

__________________________________

 

YYYY-MM-DD
BANCORP BALANCED MORTGAGE
FUND II LTD.
By their Authorized Signatory

__________________________________
Name:

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
BANCORP GROWTH MORTGAGE
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
BANCORP FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
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
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF
WHITE ROCK
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

Electronic Signature
Your electronic signature is a representation that you are a designate authorized to
certify this document under section 168.4 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996 c.250, that
you certify this document under section 168.41(4) of the act, and that an execution
copy, or a true copy of that execution copy, is in your possession.
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PART 2 – TERMS OF INSTRUMENT 

 
HOUSING AGREEMENT AND COVENANT 

(Section 483 Local Government Act and Section 219 Land Title Act) 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made the ________ day of May, 2024, 
 
BETWEEN: 

 
WS VIDAL PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LTD., INC. NO. BC1163846 
315 – 13338 Central Avenue, Surrey, B.C. V3T 0M3 
 
(the “Owner”) 

 
OF THE FIRST PART 

AND: 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF WHITE ROCK, a 
municipal corporation under the Community Charter of the 
Province of British Columbia, and having its City Offices at 15322 
Buena Vista Avenue, White Rock, BC V4B 1Y6 
 
(the “City”) 

OF THE SECOND PART 
WHEREAS: 
 
A. Section 483 of the Local Government Act permits the City to enter into and note on title to 

lands, housing agreements which may include, without limitation, conditions in respect to the 
form of tenure of housing units, availability of housing units to classes of persons, 
administration of housing units, and rent that may be charged for housing units; 
 

B. Section 219 of the Land Title Act permits the registration of a covenant of a positive or a 
negative nature in favour of the City in respect of the use of land and construction on land; 

 
C. The Owner is the owner of the Lands (as hereinafter defined); 

 
D. The Owner made an application to rezone the Lands from RS-1 (One Unit Residential Zone), 

RT-1 (Two Unit (Duplex) Residential Zone), and CD-32 (Comprehensive Development Zone 
(1455-65 Vidal Street)) to CD-68 Comprehensive Development Zone (14937 Thrift Avenue 
and 1441, 1443-45, 1465 Vidal Street) to permit the development of a six-storey rental 
apartment building (the “Building”) with 139 rental units, including 14 Rent Controlled 
Rental Units; and 
 

E. The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement (as hereinafter defined) to provide 
long-term rental housing on the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. 
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In consideration of $1.00 and other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is acknowledged by both parties), and in consideration of the promises exchanged below, 
the Owner and the City covenant and agree pursuant to section 483 of the Local Government Act 
and section 219 of the Land Title Act as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 
 
1.1 Definitions – In this Agreement, the following words have the following meanings: 
 

(a) “Age of Majority” means 19 years of age; 
 

(b) “Agreement” means this agreement together with all LTO forms, schedules, 
appendices, attachments and priority agreements attached hereto or incorporated by 
reference herein; 

 
(c) “Daily Amount” means $100.00 per day as of January 1, 2024, adjusted annually 

thereafter by adding thereto an amount calculated by multiplying $100.00 by the 
percentage change authorized for maximum rent increases under the Residential 
Tenancy Act from January 1, 2024, to January 1 of the year that a written notice is 
delivered to the Owner by the City pursuant to section 5.2 of this Agreement. In the 
absence of obvious error or mistake, any calculation by the City of the Daily Amount 
in any particular year shall be final and conclusive; 

 
(d) “Dwelling Unit” means a residential dwelling unit or units located or to be located on 

the Lands, and includes, where the context permits, a Secured Rental Unit and a Rent 
Controlled Rental Unit, and in the event of uncertainty arising from interpretation of 
this definition, has the same meaning as in the City’s zoning bylaw as amended or 
replaced from time to time; 

 
(e) “Excess Charges” means any amount of rent charged in respect of a tenancy of a Rent 

Controlled Rental Unit that is in excess of Permitted Rent, plus any fees or charges of 
any nature whatsoever that are charged in respect of the tenancy of a Rent Controlled 
Rental Unit that are not Permitted Tenant Charges, and includes all such amounts 
charged in respect of any tenancy since the commencement date of the Tenancy 
Agreement in question, irrespective of when the City renders an invoice in respect of 
Excess Charges; 

 
(f) “Household” means, in respect of a Dwelling Unit, all individuals occupying, or 

intending to occupy, that Dwelling Unit for more than thirty (30) consecutive days or 
more than forty-five (45) days total in any calendar year; 

 
(g) “Income Tested Tenant” for Rent Controlled Rental Units means a Tenant thereof 

whose income does not exceed the Income Threshold; 
 

(h) “Income Threshold” means a gross income of 80 percent of the median household 
income in the City of White Rock Income as defined by and based on data published 



{02229182.2}  
 

in the most recent Census of Canada, or if such data is not currently published, by the 
Province of British Columbia, or if such data is not currently published, by the CMHC, 
from time to time; 

 
(i) “Interpretation Act” means the Interpretation Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, Chapter 238; 

 
(j) “Lands” means the following lands and premises situate in the City of White Rock and 

any part, including a building or a portion of a building, into which said land is 
Subdivided: 

 
LOT 8 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 13684 
PID: 007-208-677 

 
THE COMMON PROPERTY OF STRATA PLAN NWS2236 
 
STRATA LOT 1 OF SECTION 9 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT 
STRATA PLAN NW2236 
PID: 001-267-744  
 
STRATA LOT 2 OF SECTION 9 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT 
STRATA PLAN NW2236 
PID: 001-267-761 
 
LOT 1 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 
EPP46879 
PID: 029-484-413 
 
LOT 41 SECTION 10 TOWNSHIP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 
35379 
PID: 007-223-480; 

 
(k) “Land Title Act” means the Land Title Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, Chapter 250; 

 
(l) “Local Government Act” means the Local Government Act, R.S.B.C. 2015, Chapter 1; 

 
(m) “LTO” means the New Westminster Land Title Office or its successor; 

 
(n) “Owner” means the party described on page 1 of this Agreement as the Owner and any 

subsequent permitted owner of the Lands or of any part into which the Lands are 
Subdivided, and includes any person who is a registered owner in fee simple of a 
Dwelling Unit from time to time; 

 
(o) “Permitted Rent” means the maximum rent set out in Schedule B of this Agreement 

in respect of the number of bedrooms of the Dwelling Unit in question and the type of 
dwelling unit (Secured Rental Unit or Rent Controlled Rental Unit), provided that the 
amounts set out in Schedule B of this Agreement may be increased once per year in 
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accordance with any maximum positive change authorized under the Residential 
Tenancy Act between January 1, 2024 and the month in which the rent is being 
increased, and may be further increased with the prior written consent of the City to 
cover unexpected increases in operating, maintenance and servicing costs; 

 
(p) “Permitted Tenant Charges” means resident parking, typical monthly insurance 

premiums for tenant's household contents and third party liability insurance plus an 
amount equal to the average monthly charge for electricity supplied to all Dwelling 
Units on the lands by the B.C. Hydro and Power Authority based on electricity 
consumption over the previous twelve months only, and excludes without limitation 
any other amounts charged by the Owner from time to time in respect of any laundry, 
services or programs provided by or on behalf of the Owner and any other permitted 
charges as set out in section 3.1(c) whether or not such amounts are charged on a 
monthly or other basis to the Tenants; 

 
(q) “Priority Tenant” means an Income Tested Tenant of a Rent Controlled Rental Unit 

who is or whose Household is comprised exclusively of persons who are 65 years or 
older or at risk of housing insecurity; 

 
(r) “Real Estate Development Marketing Act” means the Real Estate Development 

Marketing Act, S.B.C. 2004, Chapter 41; 
 

(s) “Rental Unit” means a Rent Controlled Rental Unit or a Secured Rental Unit; 
 

(t) “Rent Controlled Rental Unit” means a Dwelling Unit designated as such in 
accordance with a building permit and/or development permit issued by the City and/or, 
if applicable, in accordance with any rezoning consideration applicable to the 
development on the Lands and includes, without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, a Dwelling Unit charged by this Agreement; 

 
(u) “Residential Tenancy Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, S.B.C. 2002, Chapter 

78; 
 

(v) “Secured Rental Unit” means a Dwelling Unit which is not occupied by the registered 
or beneficial owner of the same, but which is made available by such owner to the 
general public at arm’s length, for use as market rental accommodation in accordance 
with this Agreement, reasonably prudent landlord-tenant practices for rental residential 
accommodation and any and all laws applicable thereto; 

 
(w) “Strata Property Act” means the Strata Property Act, S.B.C. 1998, Chapter 43; 

 
(x) “Subdivide” means to divide, apportion, consolidate or subdivide the Lands or any 

building on the Lands, or the ownership or right to possession or occupation of the 
Lands or any building on the Lands, into two or more lots, strata lots, parcels, parts, 
portions or shares, whether by plan, descriptive words or otherwise, under the Land 
Title Act, the Strata Property Act, or otherwise, and includes the creation, conversion, 
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organization or development of “cooperative interests” or a “shared interest in land” as 
defined in the Real Estate Development Marketing Act; 

 
(y) “Tenancy Agreement” means a tenancy agreement, lease, license or other agreement 

pursuant to the Residential Tenancy Act granting rights to occupy a Dwelling Unit; 
 

(z) “Tenant” means an occupant of a Dwelling Unit by way of a Tenancy Agreement; and 
 

(aa) “Term” means the period of time calculated in accordance with section 6.24. 
 
1.2 Interpretation – In this Agreement: 
 

(a) wherever the singular or masculine is used herein, the same shall be construed as 
meaning the plural, feminine or body corporate or politic, where the contents or parties 
so require; 
 

(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not 
to be used in interpreting this Agreement; 

 
(c) if a word or expression is defined in this Agreement, other parts of speech and 

grammatical forms of the same word or expression have corresponding meanings; 
 

(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under 
the authority of that enactment; 

 
(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, 

amended, re-enacted or replaced, unless otherwise expressly provided; 
 

(f) the provisions of section 25 of the Interpretation Act with respect to the calculation of 
time apply; 

 
(g) time is of the essence; 

 
(h) all provisions are to be interpreted as always speaking; 

 
(i) reference to a “party” is a reference to a party to this Agreement and to that party’s 

respective successors, assigns, trustees, administrators and receivers. Wherever the 
context so requires, reference to a “party” also includes a Tenant, agent, officer and 
invitee of the party; 

 
(j) reference to a “day”, “month”, or “year” is a reference to a calendar day, calendar 

month, calendar or calendar year, as the case may be, unless otherwise expressly 
provided; and 

 
(k) where the word “including” is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended 

to circumscribe the generality of the expression preceding the word “including”. 
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1.3 Acknowledgements - The Owner acknowledges and agrees that: 

 
(a) except as expressly provided, nothing in this Agreement will relieve the Owner from 

any obligation or requirement arising under any applicable statute, bylaw or regulation 
in respect of the use, subdivision and development of the Lands; 
 

(b) nothing contained or implied in this Agreement will prejudice or affect the City’s 
rights, powers, duties or obligations in the exercise of its functions pursuant to the Local 
Government Act, the Community Charter or other statutes, bylaws, orders and 
regulations; and 
 

(c) all obligations of the Owner under this Agreement will be at the cost of the Owner. 
 

ARTICLE 2 USE AND CONSTRUCTION OF LANDS AND DWELLING UNITS 
 
2.1 Use and Construction of Lands – The Owner covenants and agrees that: 
 

(a) the Lands will not be developed and no building or structure will be constructed or used 
on the Lands unless as part of the development, construction, or use of any such 
building or structure, the Owner also designs and constructs to completion, in 
accordance with a building permit issued by the City, any development permit issued 
by the City and, if applicable, any rezoning consideration applicable to the development 
on the Lands, at least fourteen (14) Rent Controlled Rental Units; and 
 

(b) notwithstanding that the Owner may be otherwise entitled, the Owner shall not occupy 
or permit to be occupied any Dwelling Unit on the Lands unless the Owner has: 

 
(i) constructed the Rent Controlled Rental Units in accordance with this 

Agreement; and 
 

(ii) all of the Rent Controlled Rental Units are ready for occupancy in accordance 
with all applicable laws, regulations and bylaws; and 

 
(iii) delivered to the Director, Planning and Development Services, a final rent roll 

confirming the rents to be charged to the first occupants of the Secured Rental 
Units and Rent Controlled Rental Units; and 

 
 

without limiting the general scope of section 6.4 and 6.5, the Owner does hereby 
waive, remise and release absolutely any and all claims against the City and City 
personnel for any losses that may derive from the withholding of an Occupancy Permit 
until there is compliance with the provisions of this section 2.1. 
 

2.2 Use of Rent Controlled Rental Units – The Owner covenants and agrees that, subject to 
the Residential Tenancy Act, the following apply in respect of those who occupy a Rent 
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Controlled Rental Unit: 
 

(a) the total gross annual income of all individuals who are of the Age of Majority within 
the Household who occupy the Rent Controlled Rental Unit must not exceed the 
Income Threshold required for Income Tested Tenants under this Agreement; and 
 

(b) at least seven (7) days prior to the occupancy of a Rent Controlled Rental Unit by a 
new tenant, the Owner of the Rent Controlled Rental Unit must deliver to the City a 
Statutory Declaration, substantially in the form (with, in the City’s discretion, such 
further amendments or additions as deemed necessary) attached as Schedule A-1, 
sworn by the Income Tested Tenant under oath before a commissioner for taking 
affidavits in British Columbia, containing all of the information required to complete 
the Statutory Declaration. 

 
2.3 Operation of Dwelling Units – The Owner agrees to operate and maintain the Dwelling 

Units only as Rental Units, subject to the Residential Tenancy Act. 
 
2.4 Short-term Rentals Prohibited – The Owner agrees that no Dwelling Unit may be rented 

to any person for a term of less than one (1) year, but the Owner may continue renting a 
Dwelling Unit to the same person on a month to month basis following the expiry of the 
initial term for that Dwelling Unit, if applicable. 

 
2.5 Requirement for Statutory Declaration – Wherever in this Agreement a statutory 

declaration is required, it must be executed in the form attached as a schedule to this 
Agreement and witnessed by a commissioner for oaths for British Columbia.  

 
2.6 No Subdivision to Allow Separate Sale – The Owner must not without the prior approval 

of the City Council Subdivide a Dwelling Unit in a building on the Lands or transfer the 
title to a Dwelling Unit to a person unless all Dwelling Units in the building are transferred 
to the same person in accordance with section 3.3. Without limitation, the Owner 
acknowledges that the City will not support applications for Subdivision of any buildings 
on the Lands in any manner that would allow the Dwelling Units to be sold independently 
of each other. 

 
2.7 City Authorized to Make Inquiries – The Owner hereby irrevocably authorizes the City 

to make such inquiries as it considers necessary in order to confirm that the Owner is 
complying with this Agreement. 
 

2.8 Records and Inspection of Records - The Owner must retain all records that pertain to its 
obligations under this Agreement for not less than seven (7) years following the date of 
receipt or production of the records. The City will have the right to inspect the records 
including the right to enter any premises used by the Owner to keep or store the records at 
any time after the delivery of notice to the Owner and will have the immediate right to 
make extracts from and take copies of the records.  
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2.9 Strata Corporation is Subject to Agreement 
 

(a) This Agreement will be binding upon all strata corporations (“Strata Corporations”) 
created upon the strata title Subdivision of the Lands, or any Subdivided parcel of the 
Lands. 
 

(b) Any Strata Corporation bylaw which prevents, restricts, or abridges the right to use the 
Affordable Rental Units as affordable rental housing will have no force and effect. 

 
(c) No Strata Corporation will pass any bylaws preventing, restricting, or abridging the use 

of the Affordable Rental Units as affordable rental housing.  
 

ARTICLE 3 OCCUPANCY, DISPOSITION AND ACQUISITION OF DWELLING 
RENTAL UNITS 

 
3.1 Occupancy of Dwelling Units – The Owner must not rent, lease, license or otherwise 

permit occupancy of any Dwelling Unit except in accordance with the following additional 
conditions: 

 
(a) the Dwelling Unit will be used or occupied only pursuant to a Tenancy Agreement; 

 
(b) the monthly rent payable by a Tenant for the right to occupy a Dwelling Unit must not 

exceed the Permitted Rent in respect of the number of bedrooms of the Dwelling Unit; 
 

(c) the Owner will not require the Tenant or any permitted occupant to pay any extra 
charges or fees for use of any facilities or amenities, or for sanitary sewer, storm sewer, 
water, other utilities, or property or similar tax; 

 
(d) the Owner will attach a copy of this Agreement to every Tenancy Agreement; 

 
(e) the Owner will include in the Tenancy Agreement a clause requiring the Tenant and 

each permitted occupant of the Dwelling Unit to comply with this Agreement; 
 

(f) subject to the Residential Tenancy Act, the Owner will include in the Tenancy 
Agreement a clause entitling the Owner to terminate the Tenancy Agreement if: 

 
(i) a Dwelling Unit is occupied by a person or persons other than the Tenant; 

 
(ii) the total gross annual income of all individuals who are of the Age of Majority 

within the Household rises above the Income Threshold; 
 

(iii) the Dwelling Unit is occupied by more than the number of people the City’s 
building inspector determines can reside in the Dwelling Unit given the number 
and size of bedrooms in the Dwelling Unit and in light of any relevant standards 
set by the City in any bylaws of the City; 
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(iv) the Dwelling Unit remains vacant for three (3) consecutive months or longer, 
notwithstanding the timely payment of rent; 

 
(v) the Tenant fails to pay rent when due in accordance with the Tenancy 

Agreement and the Residential Tenancy Act; or 
 

 
(vi) the Landlord is entitled, for any reason, to terminate the Tenancy Agreement in 

accordance with the Tenancy Agreement and the Residential Tenancy Act, 
 

and in the case of each breach, the Owner hereby agrees with the City to forthwith 
provide to the Tenant a notice of termination. The notice of termination shall 
provide that the termination of the tenancy shall be effective thirty (30) days 
following the date of the notice of termination; 
 

(b) the Tenancy Agreement will identify all occupants of the Dwelling Unit and will 
stipulate that anyone not identified in the Tenancy Agreement will be prohibited from 
residing at the Dwelling Unit for more than thirty (30) consecutive days or more than 
forty-five (45) days total in any calendar year; and 
 

(c) the Owner will forthwith deliver a certified true copy of the Tenancy Agreement to the 
City upon demand subject to the Residential Tenancy Act. 

 
3.2 Tenant to Vacate Rental Unit Upon Termination – If the Owner has terminated the 

Tenancy Agreement, then the Owner shall use best efforts to cause the Tenant and all other 
persons that may be in occupation of the Dwelling Unit to vacate the Dwelling Unit on or 
before the effective date of termination subject to the Residential Tenancy Act. 

 
3.3 No Separate Sale – The Owner covenants with the City that the Owner will not sell or 

transfer, or agree to sell or transfer, any interest in any building on the Lands (or if the 
building has been stratified, any strata lot) containing a Dwelling Unit on the Lands other 
than a full interest in the title to all Dwellings Units, and to a person that will in a manner 
satisfactory to the City continue to ensure that all Dwelling Units are available for rental in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

 
3.4 Rental Tenure – The Owner covenants with the City that for the life of the Building it will 

take all steps required of it to guarantee that the Dwelling Units are occupied in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement, granting the occupants a residential rental tenure to the 
Dwelling Unit that they occupy. 
 

3.5 Minimum Tenure for Rent Controlled Rental Unit – Subject to the Residential Tenancy 
Act, each Rent Controlled Rental Unit must be occupied by Income Tested Tenant(s) at no 
more than the Permitted Rent for a minimum period of fifteen (15) years from the date on 
which the City has issued an occupancy permit for the Rent Controlled Rental Unit. 
 

3.6 Priority Tenants – Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, a Priority Tenant 
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occupying a Rent Controlled Rental Unit at the end of the period specified in section 3.5 
shall be entitled to continue occupying a Rent Controlled Rental Unit at no more than the 
Permitted Rent for the life of the Building. 

 
ARTICLE 4 DEMOLITION OF DWELLING UNIT 

 
4.1 Demolition – The Owner will not demolish a Dwelling Unit unless: 
 

(a) the Owner has obtained the written opinion of a professional engineer or 
architect who is at arm’s length to the Owner that it is no longer reasonable or 
practical to repair or replace any structural component of the Dwelling Unit, 
and the Owner has delivered to the City a copy of the engineer’s or architect’s 
report; or 
 

(b) the Dwelling Unit is damaged or destroyed, to the extent of 40% or more of its 
value above its foundations, as determined by the City, in its sole discretion, 

 
and, in each case, a demolition permit for the Dwelling Unit has been issued by the City 
and the Dwelling Unit has been demolished under that permit. 
Following demolition, the Owner will use and occupy any replacement Dwelling Unit in 
compliance with this Agreement to the same extent and in the same manner as this 
Agreement applies to the original Dwelling Unit, and the Dwelling Unit must be approved 
by the City as a Rent Controlled Rental Unit, or Secure Rental Unit, in accordance with 
this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 
5.1 Payment of Excess Charges – The Owner agrees that, in addition to any other remedies 

available to the City under this Agreement or at law or in equity, if a Dwelling Unit is used 
or occupied in breach of this Agreement, if an Dwelling Unit is rented at a rate in excess 
of the Permitted Rent or the Owner imposes in respect of any tenancy of a Dwelling Unit 
any fee or charge of whatsoever nature other than Permitted Tenant Charges, the Owner 
will pay the Excess Charges to the City. The Excess Charges are due and payable five (5) 
business days following receipt by the Owner of an invoice from the City for the same. 

 
5.2 Payment of Daily Amount – The Owner agrees that, in addition to any other remedies 

available to the City under this Agreement or at law or in equity, if a Dwelling Unit is used 
or occupied in breach of this Agreement, or the Owner is otherwise in breach of any of its 
obligations under this Agreement, the Owner will pay the Daily Amount to the City for 
every day that the breach continues after forty-five (45) days’ written notice from the City 
to the Owner stating the particulars of the breach. The Daily Amount is due and payable 
five (5) business days following receipt by the Owner of an invoice from the City for the 
same. 

 
5.3 Rent Charge – The Owner hereby grants to the City a perpetual rent charge against the 

Lands securing payment by the Owner to the City of any amount payable by the Owner 
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pursuant to section 5.2 of this Agreement. The Owner agrees that the City, at its option, 
may enforce payment of such outstanding amount in a court of competent jurisdiction as a 
contract debt, by an action for and order for sale, by proceedings for the appointment of a 
receiver, or in any other method available to the City at law or in equity. This rent charge 
is created both under section 205(2)(b) of the Land Title Act as an integral part of the 
statutory covenant created by this Agreement and as a fee simple rent charge at common 
law. Enforcement of this rent charge by the City does not limit, or prevent the City from 
enforcing, any other remedy or right the City may have again the Owner. 

 
5.4 Damages Inadequate – Notwithstanding section 5.2 and 5.3, the Owner acknowledges 

and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is not fully remediable by the 
mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm sustained by the City and to 
the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of adequate monetary 
compensation.  

 
5.5 No Remedy is Exclusive – No remedy under this Agreement is deemed to be exclusive 

but will, where possible, be cumulative with all other remedies available under this 
Agreement, at law or in equity.  

 
ARTICLE 6 MISCELLANEOUS 

 
6.1 Housing Agreement – The Owner acknowledges and agrees that: 
 

(a) this Agreement includes a housing agreement entered into under section 483 of the 
Local Government Act and a covenant under section 219 of the Land Title Act; 
 

(b) the Owner will, at its sole cost register this Agreement in the LTO pursuant to 
section 483 of the Local Government Act against the title to the Lands. 

 
6.2 Modification – this Agreement may be modified or amended from time to time, by consent 

of the Owner and a bylaw duly passed by the Council of the City and thereafter if it is 
signed by the City and the Owner. 

 
6.3 Management – The Owner covenants and agrees that it will furnish good and efficient 

management of the Dwelling Units, that all Dwelling Units will be managed by the same 
manager and that the Owner will permit representatives of the City to inspect the Dwelling 
Units at any reasonable time, subject to the notice provisions in the Residential Tenancy 
Act. The Owner further covenants and agrees that it will maintain the Dwelling Units in a 
good state of repair and fit for habitation and will comply with all laws, including health 
and safety standards applicable to the Lands. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Owner 
acknowledges and agrees that the City, acting reasonably, may require the Owner, at the 
Owner’s expense, to hire a person or company with the skill and expertise to manage the 
Dwelling Units. 

 
6.4 Indemnity – The Owner will indemnify and save harmless the City and each of its elected 

officials, officers, directors, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
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representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, 
damage, costs and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or 
incur or be put to by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any negligent act or omission of the Owner, or its officers, directors, agents, 

contractors or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible relating to 
this Agreement; 
 

(b) the construction, maintenance, repair, ownership, lease, license, operation, 
management or financing of the Lands or any Dwelling Unit or the enforcement of 
any Tenancy Agreement; or 

 
(c) without limitation, any legal or equitable wrong on the part of the Owner or any 

breach of this Agreement by the Owner. 
 
6.5 Release – The Owner hereby releases and forever discharges the City and each of its 

elected officials, officers, directors, and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all 
claims, demands, damages, actions, or causes of action by reason of or arising out of or 
which would or could not occur but for the: 

 
(a) construction, maintenance, repair, ownership, lease, license, operation or 

management of the Lands or any Dwelling Unit under this Agreement; or 
 

(b) the exercise by the City of any of its rights under this Agreement. 
 
6.6 Survival – The indemnity and release set out in this Agreement will survive termination 

or discharge of this Agreement. 
 
6.7 Priority – The Owner will do everything necessary, at the Owner’s expense, to ensure that 

this Agreement will be noted and registered against title to the Lands in priority to all 
financial charges and financial encumbrances which may have been registered or are 
pending registration against title to the Lands save and except those specifically approved 
in advance in writing by the City or in favour of the City, and that a notice under section 
483(5) of the Local Government Act will be filed on the title to the Lands. 

 
6.8 City’s Powers Unaffected – This Agreement does not: 
 

(a) affect, fetter or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the City under any 
enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of the 
Lands; 
 

(b) impose on the City any legal duty or obligation, including any duty of care or 
contractual or other legal duty or obligation, to enforce this Agreement; 

 
(c) affect or limit any enactment relating to the use or subdivision of the Lands; or 
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(d) relieve the Owner from complying with any enactment, including in relation to the 

use or subdivision of the Lands. 
 
6.9 Agreement for Benefit of City Only – The Owner and the City agree that: 

 
(a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 

 
(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, any Tenant, or 

any future owner, lessee, occupier or user of the Lands or the building or any 
portion thereof, including any Dwelling Unit; and 

 
(c) the City may at any time execute a release and discharge of this Agreement, without 

liability to anyone for doing so, and without obtaining the consent of the Owner. 
 
6.10 No Public Law Duty – Where the City is required or permitted by this Agreement to form 

an opinion, exercise a discretion, express satisfaction, make a determination or give its 
consent, the Owner agrees that the City is under no public law duty of fairness or natural 
justice in that regard and agrees that the City may do any of those things in the same manner 
as if it were a private party and not a public body. 

 
6.11 Notice – Any notice required to be served or given to a party herein pursuant to this 

Agreement will be sufficiently served or given if delivered, to the postal address of the 
Owner set out in the records at the LTO, and in the case of the City addressed to: 
 

City of White Rock 
15322 Buena Vista Avenue 
White Rock, BC V4B 1Y6  
 
Attention: Director of Corporate Administration 
 

or to the most recent postal address provided in a written notice given by each of the parties 
to the other. Any notice which is delivered is to be considered to have been given on the 
first day after it is dispatched for delivery. 

 
6.12 Enuring Effect – This Agreement will extend to and be binding upon and enure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
6.13 Severability – If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, 

such provision or any part thereof will be severed from this Agreement and the resultant 
remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

 
6.14 Waiver – All remedies of the City will be cumulative and may be exercised by the City in 

any order or concurrently in case of any breach and each remedy may be exercised any 
number of times with respect to each breach. Waiver of or delay in the City exercising any 
or all remedies will not prevent the later exercise of any remedy for the same breach or any 
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similar or different breach. 
 
6.15 Whole Agreement – This Agreement, and any documents signed by the Owner 

contemplated by this Agreement, represent the whole agreement between the City and the 
Owner respecting the use and occupation of the Dwelling Unit, and there are no warranties, 
representations, conditions or collateral agreements made by the City except as set forth in 
or contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
6.16 Further Assurance – Upon request by the City the Owner will forthwith do such acts and 

execute such documents as may be reasonably necessary in the opinion of the City to give 
effect to this Agreement. 

 
6.17 Agreement Runs with Lands – This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and 

every parcel into which it is Subdivided in perpetuity. All of the covenants and agreements 
contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its personal administrators, 
successors and assigns, and all persons who after the date of this Agreement acquire an 
interest in the Lands. 

 
6.18 Equitable Remedies – The Owner acknowledges and agrees that damages would be an 

inadequate remedy for the City for any breach of this Agreement and that the public interest 
strongly favours specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise), or other 
equitable relief, as the only adequate remedy for a default under this Agreement. 

 
6.19 No Joint Venture – Nothing in this Agreement will constitute the Owner as the agent, 

joint venturer, or partner of the City or give the Owner any authority to bind the City in 
any way. 

 
6.20 Applicable Law – The laws of British Columbia (including, without limitation, the 

Residential Tenancy Act) will apply to this Agreement and all statutes referred to herein 
are enactments of the Province of British Columbia. 

 
6.21 Deed and Contract – By executing and delivering this Agreement the Owner intends to 

create both a contract and a deed executed and delivered under seal. 
 
6.22 Joint and Several – If the Owner is comprised of more than one person, firm or body 

corporate, then the covenants, agreements and obligations of the Owner shall be joint and 
several. 

6.23 Limitation on Owner’s Obligations – The Owner is only liable for breaches of this 
Agreement that occur while the Owner is the registered owner of the Lands provided 
however that notwithstanding that the Owner is no longer the registered owner of the 
Lands, the Owner will remain liable for breaches of this Agreement that occurred while the 
Owner was the registered owner of the Lands. For greater certainty, the Owner shall not be 
liable for the breach of any obligation under this Agreement, if the act of complying with 
such obligation would be contrary to any applicable laws, including the Residential 
Tenancy Act.  

6.24 Term – This Agreement will commence on the date of its making, and will continue until 
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the date: 
 
(a) the Owner and City agree in writing to terminate this Agreement, and 

 
(b) the City discharges this Agreement from title in the LTO as a covenant and from 

filing in the LTO as a housing agreement.  
 
6.25 Expiry of Housing Agreement – Upon expiry, the Owner may provide to the City a draft 

discharge of this Agreement, which the City will execute and return to the Owner for filing 
and registration in the LTO. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the Land Title Act 
Charge General Instrument – Part 1 which is attached to and forms part of this Agreement. 
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SCHEDULE A - 1 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
 
CANADA ) IN THE MATTER OF A HOUSING 
 ) AGREEMENT WITH THE 
 ) CORPORATION OF THE 
 ) CITY OF WHITE ROCK 
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA )  
 ) (“Housing Agreement”) 

_____________________________ 
  
 
TO WITNESS: 
 
 
I, __________________________ of ________________________________, British Columbia,  
 [Print name] [Address] 
 
DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE THAT: 
 

1. This declaration is made with respect to the Dwelling Unit municipally described as 
__________________________________, White Rock, British Columbia and legally 
described as PID: _________________________________________________________ 
(the “Rent Controlled Rental Unit”). 

 
2. I am an occupier of the Rent Controlled Rental Unit, having reached the age of 19 (the “Age 

of Majority”), and make this declaration to the best of my personal knowledge and believe 
the statements in this declaration are true. 
 

3. This declaration is made pursuant to the Housing Agreement registered against title to the 
Rent Controlled Rental Unit (the “Housing Agreement”). 
 

4. I have received and reviewed a copy of the Housing Agreement and acknowledge that the 
terms and definitions in the Housing Agreement also apply to this declaration. 
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5. The names of all persons in my Household and their addresses for the past twelve (12) 
months are as follows: 
_________________________________________________________________________
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

[Insert names and addresses of all occupants of Rent Controlled Rental Unit Unit] 
 

6. The annual gross income of all of the individuals described in paragraph 5 above who have 
reached the Age of Majority is $_____________. This amount does not exceed the Income 
Threshold under paragraph 7 below. Accompanying this declaration, unless otherwise 
waived in writing by the City, are true copies of the Notices of Assessment provided by the 
Canada Revenue Agency for the two most recent years for all individuals of my Household 
who are older than the Age of Majority. 
 

7. As of the date of this declaration, the current Income Threshold for my Household is 
$_____________. 
 

8. I have a real and substantial connection with the City of White Rock based on one of the 
following considerations (initial applicable box and provide details in space beside box): 
 
[ ] I, or at least one member of my Household has resided in the City of White Rock 

for at least twelve (12) months before occupying the Rent Controlled Rental Unit 
(provide details if applicable): 

 
             
 
             
 
[ ] I, or at least one member of my Household has full-time employment within the 

City of White Rock (provide details if applicable): 
 
             
 
             
 
[ ] at least one member of the Household is enrolled in school or college on a full-time 

basis within the City of White Rock (provide details if applicable): 
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[ ] I have a real and substantial connection with the City of White Rock based on the 
following considerations  (provide details if applicable): 

 
             
 
             

 
9. I agree to comply with the Owner’s obligations under the Housing Agreement and other 

charges in favour of the City registered in the New Westminster Land Title Office against 
the Rent Controlled Rental Unit for so long as I am an occupier of the Rent Controlled Rental 
Unit. 
 

10. I acknowledge and agree that damages are not an adequate remedy to the City in respect of 
any breach of the Housing Agreement by the Owner of a Rent Controlled Rental Unit, such 
that I agree the City will be entitled to an order for specific performance, injunction or other 
specific relief respecting any breach of this Agreement by the Owner or an occupier and to 
legal costs on a solicitor and client basis. 
  

11. I make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing it to be true and knowing that it is 
of the same force and effect as if made under oath and pursuant to the Canada Evidence Act. 
 

DECLARED BEFORE ME AT ) 
     THIS ) 
  DAY OF   , 20 ) 
     ) 
     ) 
     )         
Print name:    ) DECLARANT 
A commissioner of oaths for the ) 
the Province of British Columbia ) 
[Affix Commissioner’s stamp or seal ) 
     ) 
     ) 
     ) 
 
NOTE: A false declaration may result in a fine of up to $2000.00, up to six months’ 
imprisonment, or both.  
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SCHEDULE B 

 

PERMITTED RENT 
 

“Rent Controlled Rental Units” rented to Income Tested Tenants 

Unit Type One, two and three-bedroom 

Permitted Rent  20% below the average rent for each of these unit types in White 

Rock, British Columbia as determined by Canada Mortgage and 

Housing Corporation’s most recent Rental Market Survey 

 

“Secured Rental Units” 

Unit Type Studio One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-

Bedroom 

Permitted Rent No maximum No maximum.  No maximum.  No maximum 
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PRIORITY - MEMORANDUM AS TO INTEREST 

 

Mortgage CB904727 and Assignment of Rents CB904728 registered against the Lands at the 

New Westminster Land Title Office, are called herein the "Interest". 

 

CONSENT TO PRIORITY 

 

Bancorp Balanced Mortgage Fund II Ltd. (Incorporation No. BC0856913), Bancorp Growth 

Mortgage Fund II Ltd. (Incorporation No. BC0856914), Bancorp Financial; Services Inc. 

(Incorporation No. BC0712503), and VersaBank, the holders as joint tenants of the Interest 

referred to in the memorandum above written, in consideration of $1.00 now paid to us and for 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, each hereby consent to the granting of this Housing Agreement and each hereby 

covenant that this Housing Agreement and Covenant will rank in priority upon the Lands over 

the Interest as if this Housing Agreement and Covenant had been registered prior to the Interest. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement on the Land Title Act 

Charge General Instrument – Part 1 to which this Housing Agreement and Covenant is attached 

and which form part of this Housing Agreement and Covenant, effective as of the date first 

above written. 
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